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Mission Statement

Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra is united in its
commitment to offering excellence in Chinese music.
With a contemporary momentum and a professional
spirit, we aim to strive for the peak in music and attain
the status of a world-class orchestra that is the pride of
Hong Kong people.

BRTEE BB BRHTHERNE
Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra is financially supported by
the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
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Principal Executives

The Honourable Donald Tsang, GBM
Chief Executive, Hong Kong SAR Government

Dr Wong Tin-yau Kelvin

Mr Lai Hin-wing Henry
Ms Chiu Lai-kuen Susanna

Dr Chan Kam-biu Joshua

Dr Carlye W L Tsui BBS MBE JP
(Past Chairman 2001-2006)

Mr Davie T P Au-yeung

Mr Chung Shui-ming GBS JP

Dr Chan Wai-kai

Ir Edmund K H Leung OBE JP
Mr Chan Mo-po Paul MH JP
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Mr Yan Huichang Hubert BBS

Ms Chin Man-wah Celina

Dr Wong Lung-tak Patrick JP

Ernst & Young

dMKREEMWEBER Registered and Principal Office
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TE:E © (852) 3185 1600
EE : (852) 28155615
B 494E - www.hkco.org

Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra Limited

7/F., Sheung Wan Municipal Services Building,
345 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong
Telephone : (852) 3185 1600

Facsimile : (852) 2815 5615

Website : www.hkco.org

BEFE UL ¢ inquiries@hkco.org E-mail : inquiries@hkco.org
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25% (14%)

9% (11%)

B HEHKS$ 000 2008 2007 +/- +/-
48

"”“WA 66,509 59,762 6,747 11.3%
Total income

48

#B3 l . 68,542* 58,110 10,432 18%
Total expenditure

(E18)/ &tk .
Belei) B (2,033) 1,652 (3,685) (223.1%)
BEFE .
Net worth 13,367 15,400 (2,033) (13.2%)

* BEAFHESHSRBENEFLRBHTE 2 H (2007  F)
Included expenditure incurred for 30th Anniversary Concert and Fourth International
Symposium on Chinese Music (2007 : Nil)

K A 3kiB Source of Income - 2008 (2007)

28%(19%)

S H & B Government Subsidy

BHEEMEMBKA

Concerts and Other Income

#1Ug A Total Income

7 HK$66,508,606 (HK$59,761,886)
72%(81%)

% i 3 fh Distribution of Expenditure - 2008 (2007)

6% (5%)
60% (70%) BI/EB F Concert Production Costs

W BEERERS Y

Marketing and Fund Rasing Expenses

& KBRS Payroll and Related Expenses
H B 1 Other Operating Expenses

#37 H Total Expenditure
A HK$68,541,711 (HK$58,109,613)
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The Orchestra’s Annual Report covers our activities and highlights for the period from 1 April 2007 to 31
March 2008. The Annual Report seeks to achieve a high level of transparency expected of an organization
that is accountable for the public and shareholders.

The past year marked the 30th anniversary of Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra. Over the last three decades,
the Orchestra has been dedicated to offering excellence in and promoting the culture of Chinese music. We
are glad to see that our concerted efforts are paying off. Not only has the number of audience increased
over the years, but also the amount of corporate sponsorships. The past year has seen a record-breaking
amount of corporate sponsorships received. | would like to gratefully acknowledge the corporate sponsors
such as Bank of China (Hong Kong), China Overseas Holdings Limited, and The Robert H. N. Ho Family
Foundation for their generous support. | would also like to thank the Council Members and the staff for their
tremendous efforts in securing these new sponsorships.

| am very pleased to observe the Orchestra’s achievement in corporate sponsorships, because such
achievement represents a growing recognition of sponsoring art programmes as a corporate social
responsibility in the business sector. Music contributes to the humanity of a society; it helps to accelerate
learning, focus attention, facilitate inspiration, calm the mind and unwind the body. That is why business
supporting the music is beneficial to both the recipient organization and the business itself. It is an
investment in the future of our community with a healthier and more creative workforce.

As Hong Kong's Cultural Ambassador, the Orchestra proactively promotes Chinese music internationally. In
the past year, the Orchestra conducted 17 overseas performances, setting a new record in the history of the
Orchestra. We have received considerable acclaims from our audiences abroad for the professionalism of
our performances. Looking ahead, we aim to extend our footprint of tour performances to bring the beauty
of Chinese music to every part of the world.

While we move forward with various new programmes and new initiatives, we remain focused on the need
to ensure that the development of Chinese music is sustainable. We have continued our efforts in the
education and training of Chinese music to nurture the next generation of musicians.

The Orchestra’s achievements in the past thirty years would not have been possible without the support
from our audiences, the Government of the Hong Kong SAR, our business partners, our sponsors, our
advisors, kindred organizations, the media, the music critics and the general public, the management
and the staff. On behalf of the Orchestra, | would like to extend to the above supporters our most sincere
gratitude. Their support encourages the Orchestra to strive towards new horizons and to pursue the highest
levels of excellence. The Orchestra looks forward to even greater achievements in the years to come
with enhanced teamwork among members of the Orchestra and with an increased number of interesting
activities.

V&é?dwkufi

Wong Tin Yau, Kelvin
Council Chairman
20 August 2008
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The year under review marked the 30th anniversary of Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra. To celebrate this
significant milestone in the development of the Orchestra, we have launched new series of concerts and
activities to bring to the audiences brand new experiences.

The theme of celebration is aligned with the Orchestra’s principle of blending cultural traditions with
innovations. We have launched the “A Dialogue between Traditions and Modernity” concert series. This
concert series is especially for modern people who would like to search for their cultural roots. The first
concert in the series, “From Ancient to Modern, As East Meets West, - A Cosmopolitan Symphony”, is a
large multimedia concert which takes audience onto a music journey through time and space, from eight-
thousand-year-old ancient Chinese music to western music in modern times.

Along the same lines as the celebration theme, the Orchestra has organized “The Fourth International
Symposium on Chinese Music - Tradition and Evolution”. 49 renowned musicians, representatives from
orchestras and music institutes attended the Symposium. A collection of pioneering symphonic works, all
commissioned by the Orchestra for Chinese folk instruments by the father of modern music Doming Lam,
commissioned by the Orchestra, has been introduced at the Symposium. CCTV has produced a special TV
episode for the entire event.

Another new series is the “Hong Kong Composers” concert series. We were very honoured to have been
able to work with Mr Joseph Koo and Mr Law Wing-fai, organizing tribute concerts featuring their works.
Both concerts were a great success.

“Cadenzas of Hong Kong” continued to bring to the audiences creative pieces of work presented by local
composers. In view of the overwhelming warm response from the audiences towards “The HKCO Virtuoso
Series” since its launch, the Orchestra has organized more concerts to showcase the outstanding music
talent of HKCO members, giving rise to concerts featuring different styles and musical instruments. Other
programmes included “Music from the Heart” series and “the Valentine Concert”, as well as the Hong Kong
Drum Festival. The Hong Kong Drum Festival was already into its fifth year.

On the research and musical instrument development front, the Orchestra has kept up our efforts to achieve
more milestones. The Orchestra has invented a new series of eco-friendly hu-qgin products with enhanced
performing functions.

Now, as we look back on the thirty years of our history, in every step we took or in every accolade we
received, we can see the concern and the support of the citizens, the business sectors, supporting
organizations and the Government of Hong Kong, as well as the zealous efforts of the Council, the artistic
advisers, the generations of Music Directors, members of the Orchestra and our administrative staff. We
have grown from strength to strength thanks to the artistic input from local and international composers,
artists, and performing groups. | would like to take this opportunity to thank all our friends and colleagues -
without you, we could not have achieved so much.

The music of Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra features a unique blend of east meets west. We look forward to
working with our new friends and old friends to explore new areas of development and to create a brighter
future for the art of Chinese music.

/’g&i’é

Yan Huichang
Artistic Director
20 August 2008
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| am pleased to report that financial year 2007/2008, ended 31 March, was another great year for Hong
Kong Chinese Orchestra. Apart from continued efforts in our regular programmes, we also ventured into
new areas of development, resulting in an enhanced status of the Orchestra.

In the year under review, the Orchestra organized 39 sets, totaling 68 sessions of concerts in eight different
themed series. The eight themed series consisted of a mixture of traditional and contemporary music.
With a mission of promoting Chinese music, the Orchestra’s performance format and repertoire reflect
our Chinese cultural roots, but also feature a contemporary momentum, exemplifying the Orchestra's
undertaking of exploring new frontiers in music and experimenting with new techniques and styles.

To facilitate the education of Chinese music at schools, the Orchestra has launched a new programme
“Chinese Music DIY — HSBC Music Education Programme”, supported by The Hongkong Bank Foundation.
This programme consists of three parts, including “Train the Trainers”, “Chinese Music Appreciation
Interactive Concert” and “Music Scores Library”. The music leadership certificate workshops have been
conducted by the Orchestra’s Associate Conductor, Section Leaders and Research & Development Officer
to introduce the roles of various music leaders and to teach the know-how of concert and orchestra
organization, and the repair and maintenance of musical instruments. We believe such knowledge will help
teachers in promoting Chinese music at school. The Orchestra has organized ten interactive concerts in
various primary and secondary schools to introduce to the students in an interesting way the four families
of Chinese musical instruments, which include bowed-string instruments, plucked-string instruments,
wind instruments and percussion instruments. The Orchestra has also invited experienced educationists
in Chinese music and composers to rearrange thirty Chinese and western classics for the use by schools’
Chinese music groups or orchestras in rehearsals and performances.

The promotion of folk music is facing challenges everywhere in the world. But no difficulty could undermine
the Orchestra’s determination in furthering the development of Chinese folk music, both in Hong Kong
and internationally. In the past year, the Orchestra organized 75 sessions of outreach concerts in
various districts and schools in Hong Kong, and the number of audience reached 111,000. Four sets of
performances were broadcasted via television to millions of people around the world.

To my delight, the Orchestra’s efforts in promoting Chinese music are gaining increasing recognition. In
January, the Orchestra became the only arts organization in Hong Kong and the first Chinese Orchestra
ever invited by the National Centre for the Performing Arts to perform in the international inaugural season
in Beijing. The Orchestra’s performance was hailed as the “role model in the industry of Chinese Orchesral
music”. In March, the Orchestra was invited to perform at four world-class performing venues in the
United Kingdom. Our performances won great acclaims from the distinguished persons from the British
government and business sector, the music circle and critics as well as audiences.

While we feel encouraged by the achievements in the past year, we will not be complacent. We are all
set to achieve yet more milestones, which will not be possible without the continuous support from the
Government, our audiences, our sponsors, the music circles and our many other partners, as well as our
Council and colleagues of the Orchestra. | look forward to working with you all along the way towards
attaining the status of a world-class orchestra that is the pride of Hong Kong.

Chin Man-wah Celina

Executive Director
20August 2008

—AEBEE Year at a Glance

=p FHE | BES Concerts / Special Events
2007
48 April SRR R R E R —IE W (E 5 The Wonderful Wins of the Guo Yazhi -
The Suona Story
FEDIY Chinese Music DIY - HSBC Education
Programme Chinese Music Showcase
58 May FICLhIRA B E R The Hugin World of the Hsin Sisters
B ERERREN AR Montblanc De La Culture Arts Partronage
FREDIY Chinese Music DIY - HSBC Education
Programme Chinese Music Showcase
EREPLEERE—TR e BEN The HKCO Virtuosi — Wang Dong * Kot
Kai-Lik
6 A June FEE LI Music for Tranquility of Mind Il
ERTLEBERTELY HKCO & Friends
78 July THORERSSES To Celebrate the 10th Anniversary of
Hong Kong's Return to Motherland
MMESL : BERLERE The Themed Concert By Hong Kong
Chinese Orchestra, Hangzhou, China
ERTEBERB— IR The HKCO Virtuosi — Wong Chi-ching
AREHR—BBRGBEERE International Arts Carnival — La Luna
8 B August BRI B LR R Festival Vancouver Pre — Tour Concert

78 T 4% [ L B ) B S L RO

BATESRMBTATRETL
SRR

Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra A
Cultural Exchange Concert

Festival Vancouver Hong Kong Chinese
Orchestra Concert

The Charm of Chinese Plucked-string
Instruments
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—4EBEE Year at a Glance
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FHE / BRED

Concerts / Special Events

—AEBEE Year at a Glance

H A

FRE / BRES

Concerts /
Special Events

9H September

o RemTBRE QRELTDAS

FEIEIT(ES 2 — SHEPHEE
2008 - SFEEEEIX
RZ4DIY

AN REF  BERBERHLEHER
RRE BHZFHHED

Hong Kong New Zealand 2007 Gala
Dinner (Led by The Chief Executive,
The Honourable Donald Tsang)

Bank of China (Hong Kong) presents —
A Drum Fanfare for Beijing Olympics -
Majestic Drum IX

Chinese Music DIY - HSBC Education
Programme Chinese Music Showcase

Russia Moscow & St. Petersburg
HKCO Ensemble (Led by

Mr Frederick Ma Si-hang, JP, Secretary
for Commerce and Economic
Development)

10 B October

N BEEIN-E o LT
S

The 58th Anniversary of the Founding of

the People’s Republic of China

12 A December

ERNERBLR

BEREEX 11— f#H
BEMGI0FFHESLE

=

HEBHREX2 — &
BREBZNZBFRLER
BIENHL 24 FEEER
BELREERE

Luo Jing’s World
of Zhengs

Majestic Drums X 1 —
The 30th Anniversary
Concert of The
Outstanding Young
Persons Association

Majestic Drum X 2 — The
Safety Godown Group
Presents — The Final
Round of the 5th Hong
Kong Synergy 24 Drum
Competition and Guest
Artist Performance
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2008
FIfERLERFE — ERERE The Forth Int’l Symposium on Chinese 18 January EAESE — EAEIE A Tribute to the Maestro
Music — Tradition and Evolution P All-time Favourites by
BEEFLE - TRAFHETEE — Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra 30th Joseph Koo
LT BEXE Anniversary Concert — From Ancient Bkt - SN BME Sun Yongzhi and Choo
to Modern, As East Meets West A LR R Boon-chong - The
Cosmopolitan Symphony Lilting Sounds of the
118 November |FELENEMKEFTE — Macau Education and Youth Bureau Dizi and Xiao
O ks . HOE g% | P o invi i e - .
mbkEg - HEFRL RSP GEH ha§ invited H.KCO to p.res.ent a series of E L RERAKEEE Hong Kong Chinese
Chinese music appreciation concerts s (4 @EE|  Orchestra at The
for their secondary students at Macau . e : :
RRIEE First International
Cultural Centre
Performance Season
BEA2007FREBHEAK S LMmiERES4E ISCM — ACL World Music Days 2007 of the National Centre
Hong Kong Opening Concert for the Performing Arts,
Beijing, China (From
Classic to Modernity)
28 February EmEEEZEL 28 — Care & Health Limited -
BARZ 222008 Lingzhi Master Presents
- Valentine’s Concert
2008
YHRPE 2 Music about China 2
3 A March B CHINA NOW 2008 The Cultural

PEX(LES [EARFE] Ambassador of Hong
Kong, Hong Kong
Chinese Orchestra
performs as part of the
UK’s China Now Festival

FARE The Dream of The Red
Mansions
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31 YL B4k Taking Pride

BB R ERGEEN007TFEERBET A TR ERB I AR RERBIE LB
After completion of study at The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2007, Mr
Kelvin Wong was conferred the degree of "Doctor of Business Administration”.

LERERFCLTITNEEREENASREEERE [EXREB L] 24, WEMN
Ken Gouldingm i (B R EE L] 2o
After completion of study at Middlesex University, Ms Carlye Tsui was conferred the
degree of “Doctor in Professional Studies” and awarded the Ken Goulding prize for the
most outstanding Professional Doctorate.

Giadualion
Ceremony

RREBRARGEER ERFFIE L EBBEREULEMNED
ZRAENER G REREBHBRKRZFE12007FREHIE
FTRERBEKERBRZN °

Dr Joshua Chan was commended by the Secretary for Home
Affairs for making outstanding contributions to the development
of arts and cultural activities during the SHA's Commendation
Scheme Presentation Ceremony 2007.

o vossanann
LEAMAEREFIEENEERES NETREBER HFEETNNES IR (EER) - g e St E
Yan Huichang, Artistic Director and Principal Conductor of HKCO, won the Jurors’ —g
Award for Conducting at the 6th China Gold Record Awards — Multi Arts Category.

_
& (ZBEZR) RSHSEBRFFTLETREERRRAKIA—2008F NEFH
SRR RBLBERE - B FENFARFRERLETER - f [EFBZRAE
M TR R T AR R

The live recording of Roots of the Chinese has brought HKCO its first national
grade award — an award in the ‘Instrumental Music — Performance’ category
at the 6th China Gold Record Award. The album has also earned an award in
the ‘Instrumental Music — Album’ category and the Special Award for Original
Composition for the creative team of Roots of Chinese.

|
W R
EDOTE OF THE CHINESE

LEESMEMRARRE [RELLAGEMNRRFLEBRE] -
The Orchestra was awarded the “Most Outstanding Achievement in
Advancing Asian Contemporary Music” by the Asian Composers League.

. 0 w2005-08 ZEENR2007/08FEHEMEE [RALEBE] B35 -
Carlngorganlsatl0n Awarded with “Caring Organization” logo by the Hong Kong

Awarded by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service COUI’]C“ Of Social Service again in 2007/08.

SatEIRSHE R

T4 & B b Concerts and Performances

ERBAENXERE  XEKRTERTHNTLERIINREERBS 2/ BEESAURESHHEZTL - R0
07/08F EHAME - L@EIFH T12MEW ™ - HA7THIHEL - A TEFMNLE - LEB2003FHH [FBHE
1] - —EGIARRIED - HAREERN [FEREE ] I EUTRRIINSTELSIENELAER
EREELRAOPFLMLF o

As Hong Kong'’s Cultural Ambassador, apart from organizing regular concerts and outreach activities for
the local community, the Orchestra also proactively promotes Chinese music internationally. In the year
07/08, the Orchestra visited 12 cities with a total of 17 outreach performances, setting a new record in the
history of the Orchestra. The Hong Kong Drum Festival has received enthusiastic response from the public
since its launch in 2003. Apart from continuing with the Hong Kong Drum Festival, the Orchestra has also
organized concerts on a variety of themes to bring to the audience the colourful world of Chinese music.

2008 2007

FEHIF % E Regular Concerts

E No. of Sets 39 37
B8 No. of Performances 68 69
BISR AR Size of Audience 47,107 47,371
FHBEE S AR Average Size of Audience per Concert 693 687
SEHEES Outreach Community Activities

%% No. of Performances 75 72
BR AR Size of Audience 111,039 98,001
5 E R AR Average Size of Audience per Performance 1,481 1,361
S FLE Concert Tours

%8 No. of Performances 17 13
B R AKX Size of Audience 17,348 14,250
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Various Themed Performances to Share the Beauty of Chinese Music

SHPEBRERZRD
BUTRAMEARKEZLETESES2RGEER -

HKCO Virtuosi series

Members of the Orchestra have presented to the
audience various themed concerts with a varied

BHE2007FEEHNRNSLHBRESLE

LEESFELBESES N NEARREUESESTAEXAENAETB S BH R
2o REERRSLEPRESERBFERNRD

ISCM ACL World Music Days 2007 Hong Kong Opening Concert

The Orchestra was invited to perform at the "ISCM ACL World Music Days
2007 Hong Kong Opening Concert". The Orchestra was also invited to
perform in a small group in 14 concerts to introduce and demonstrate
to the audience various Chinese musical instruments. The Orchestra’s
performance was the one with the largest number of attendees among the
other performances of the Music Days.

% i o B 2
RRARAERESSRER  REEEMHHRE 22— -

Music About China 2

One of the programme series of Hong Kong Arts Festival to explore the
boundless realm of modern Chinese orchestral music.

igs
BiEEZE (ARE) TESLE  AZREERREENMIREZ A4 -

The Dream of the Red Mansion

A concert with music taken from a highly popular television series based
on the world-famous Chinese novel, "The Dream of Red Mansions".
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BEWER [RAXMEREMNBRAHE] - KE{F
REBABENEZ R REE  ELE30AFT
Empl et  ROKLEETRERSTLESRRANEREBBRE RS W MAREE K - RTEELFHR
PEH NS C R » LB BE R Er RIZ AR R RIMEARBUSEFK 17 = A ©

From Ancient to Modern, As East Meets West- A Composition Symphony

Hong Kong is reputed for its cosmopolitan dynamism where east meets
west. As a landmark cultural organization of this city, the orchestra
highlighted the bloodline between the orchestra and Chinese traditional
music in a concert specially created to celebrate the 30th anniversary of
its founding, and its advantageous position
as a "creative crossover" of local cultures.
Cheng Dazhao, famous composer has been
commissioned to write a new composition to
mark the 30th anniversary of the orchestra.

FOEPEBRAANE (FRAKE

EENEFLERHANE [ERERE ] BIUREEE - F
B B8 #ing o BRAERAARKNHE - BF - (xR - %
BRK  ERERRRLBEFIS2EET AWk -

Fourth International Symposium on Chinese Music

The Fourth International Symposium on Chinese Music was attended by
49 professors, scholars, composers, representatives of various orchestras
and music institutes, as well as musicians from Hong Kong, China, Taiwan,
Singapore, Malaysia and Japan.

(TREBRE] -~ PRENEESHPEBRUI0[EF
REVLEIEFEFE  HRERAFAINCA12HE 3B ERENBERFE - REARP LEL -

CCTY Special Programme celebrating the 30th Anniversary of HKCO

To celebrate the 30th anniversary of HKCO, CCTV specially
produced a TV programme in Hong Kong on 12-13 June to
be broadcasted in China, places around the world and on the
internet.

REARURBHBARERERLTRAE

LERIATREAR [EESATIFERRTAFRIEDHBR] § R FENELRIDBEHFF
BER - LETR2EA4ERSKARESRTHN [FEANEFH0072XFAESHMOAER] - A2E+ X
LEREEREERECBEMAMKINISOAREE  EEATLER [AHNFTFAME] FEBENAR TAB
B BeEseERKFARBARKEZENGR - REFRBRELR  EFEZREMZEIRZESHEE
T ZERT7TASHEL (THERERR) BH RS WEHPLEARN2,0008 T RAEREKZ 1 F
£ o

Celebrate the 10th Anniversary of the Hong Kong SAR of the People’s Republic of China with Hong
Kong people and audience around the world

The Orchestra was invited to perform at the “Launching Ceremony for Events Celebrating the Tenth
Anniversary of the Reunification by the Youth Sector” on 1 April, which kick-started a series of celebrations.
Then on 4 May, the Orchestra also participated in the “Hong Kong May Fourth Festival 2007 Flag Raising
Ceremony”. which took place at the Golden Bauhinia Square. Led by an ensemble of the orchestra and
“May Fourth Youth Representatives”, Yundi Li, a 450-people choir, formed by China Top Ten Children’s
and Youth Choruses and the Hong Kong Children’s Choir, sang the national anthem with 56 ethnic group
representatives from China. Later on, the Orchestra was invited by the Wanchai District Office, the Wanchai
District Council and several Areas Committees to take part in the “Symphony in Celebration on the HKSAR'’s
10th Anniversary” concert on 5 July to celebrate the festive occasion with 2,000 citizens in the district.
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BEIEXRFERLEBAEIOEERLEST - FRlELNES - BH
FRFHEDANERE T/ \BRASKAEEMMER - SEF—&
-6 B  THEFI0ENLFENEESLG FHRE - E—F
YRBABIFMXULEBNERNER - FREENHMBE A ¢

T4e (AH) th B
DHEHREH R — HIRNEZT (13-14/4/2007) EfEA BESE
FER R EAZE SR (11-12/5/2007) AN Wi 1S £
BEAEFRLEERE — TR e B4 (25-26/5/2007) AN PR ok 2E
BEBEPLEEZRTEELE (22-23/6/2007) Camera - fHi## 203815
g — JmAREE  ReEE
BENEBER (2.12.2007) Bi5 B 24 1
FoXE - AXEBHHER/RER (18-19.1.2008) Bl R #&E ERR

Promotion of Chinese Orchestral Music and Nurturing
of Local Talents

Cadenzas of Hong Kong

Cadenzas of Hong Kong is a special programme HKCO launched
in entering its 30th Orchestra Season. Hong Kong composers were
invited to visit one of the 18 districts of Hong Kong of their choice
to find inspiration for writing music. Each composer has to create
a piece of work that is 3-6 minutes long. The works created have
been arranged to be brought to stage one by one starting from the 30th Orchestra Season up to the 32nd
Orchestra Season to pay tribute to the composers’ contributions to the Orchestra. The works that were
premiered in the year included:-

Concert (Date) Music Composer

The Wonderful Winds of Guo Yazhi — The Suona Story Clouds Pillow the
(13-14/4/2007) Dragon’s Back

Clarence Mak

The Hugin World of the Hsin Sisters The Sea of the Little Mui Kwong-chiu

(11-12/5/2007) Palm Beach
The HKCO Virtuosi — Kot Kai-lik & Wang Dong Eight Steeds Chan Wing-wah
(25-26/5/2007)
HKCO & Friends Camera - Kwok Dick-yeung
(22-23/6/2007) Causeway Bay

Pray for Blessings — Chan Ning-chi

A Sketch of the Wong

Tai Sin Temple

Luo Jing’s World of Zheng
(2.12.2007)

A Day in the Village Tang Lok-yin

Sun Yong-zhi and Choo Boon-chong —
The Little Sounds of the Dizi and Xiao
(18-19.1.2008)

Cycles of Destiny Raymond Mok

2 P& YN
Hong Kong’s Cultural Ambassador

fii Ml 2 i# Hangzhou Tour

1.7.2007

LEEPHEMMNT RS EREF  BOEELBTRAF)E5E5LE &K
RS — EEE TN ABIGE B BB 2 e

The Orchestra was invited by the External Relations Department of
Hangzhou CPC Committee to present the “10th Anniversary of HKSAR

Concert”, making the Orchestra the first Hong Kong arts group
performed at the Hangzhou Grand Theatre.

& A 21T Canada Tour

15, 18.8.2007

LEEMEN DEFESLHN ] RENEXFTELS
MEBEREFE - MAZRZHEeH OIS BB K&
BEFERRBZROREERERL - BEMFEK
VI0EFLEEES — - EEZEERRGES
B o INEETHERBZERE TEZHREZHFTEANIREEY - FIEO AR AT IERERZENR

*gk:-L Pz

The Orchestra was invited by "Festival Vancouver" and the Hong Kong Economic and Trade office in
Canada to perform at the P.C. Ho Theatre of Chinese Cultural Centre and Chan Centre in celebration of the
10th Anniversary of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. With the generous support of the Robert
H. N. Ho Family Foundation, the Orchestra not only performed concerts in Toronto and Vancouver, but also
promoted Chinese music to people in these places through various educational workshops and exchange
with local musicians.

HimEAB Y New Zealand Tour

11.9.2007

LEEFEHRNCERAD  EEEFINTHRITERE
DEBEIFOBRETIREL -

The Orchestra was invited by the Hong Kong Economic and

Trade Office in Australia to perform at a dinner hosted by
the Chief Executive The Honourable Donald Tsang.

Yshfik 2B 8 Russia Tour

25, 27.9.2007
BEE %ET@?%%%“E%?J?%FEﬁg C SEE A/ NEB AR EHTRE
B 2L K4 [ BB ) 15 2 State Cappella HallEH » SL£ € HhATm

W&%%@?‘E%%%T BREE -

The Orchestra’s ensemble was invited by the Hong Kong
Economic and Trade Office in London to perform at the
International House of Music in Moscow and the State Cappella
Hall in Saint Petersburg. The concert was officiated by the former Secretary for Commerce and Economic
Development Mr Frederick Ma.

MRIADY Ssaulsng e T @ F M
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MMRE Performance in Macau PETIIE

6-8.11.2007

RPIHEESFERBNIGERPIS D FHBMUENRE - BFHOBFREEMEA D
REREINRFIRBIFEHBERL - BETLEEZRER/ANERKEEN XK EME
Education and Youth Affairs Bureau of Macau has been dedicated to the promotion of & ‘
arts and culture among the younger generation of Macau. Each year the Bureau invites
an expert in a certain form of art to perform for the Macau youngsters. The orchestra
was honored to have been recognized as an expert in Chinese orchestral music and tohave been invited
to perform.

o

WREBRABIRRE Performance in the National Centre for the Performing Arts
26-27.1.2008

LEEZKAEEETEEMERNIERERKEI RRABEELTEL - WORHERNNEEROTHEERE
HWERE - FRFRERET /B OEHABHENGESLE  LERSEAREREN —BGEE -

The Orchestra was the first arts organization ever
invited by the National Centre for the Performing
Arts to perform at the opening of the international
performance season. CCTV recorded the
performance and produced a TV programme on
it. The Orchestra has received much acclaim
from the music circles.

i@ il 3% M i 2 7 Performance Tour around the Four Cities of the United Kingdom
14-18.3.2008

LEERBINABEMAERFKFEZBERSHEDL @ BERA
Royal Festival Hall + £ &8 The Bridgewater Hall  {HFA%
Town Hall &4t~2The Sage Gateshead ° X EHFEESH
BHARIREEINERELREREHEREMBERESED -

The Orchestra was invited to perform at four world-class
performing venues in the United Kingdom, including the Royal
Festival Hall in London, the Bridgewater Hall in Manchester,
the Town Hall in Birmingham and the Sage Gateshead in
New Castle. The performance was sponsored by the Hong
Kong Economic and Trade Office in London and the Arts
Development Fund of Home Affairs Bureau.

ARG 4 BRI 4

Large-scale Musical Instrument Festival to Share the Fun of Music with the Public

BEELE - TINTRLE - LEBE2003FRBEMNES  —EAXTROED  XEBXBEE s &
MRALZ  ABREATRENERESTEZTEE - FFR > ARRAEREFLMBRRRLBEHORL T 153
EEt =

Sharing joy with others is always better than having fun alone. The Orchestra has been organizing the Drum
Festival since 2003 and the programme has received enthusiastic support from the public. The Orchestra
will continue to build momentum for the Drum Festival in order to share joy with and to introduce and
promote the culture of Chinese music to the general public. Over the years, 22 internationally renowned
percussionists and drum bands have performed a total of 53 masterpieces of percussion music.

WHE B R  The Sth Hong Kong Drum Festival

HEABEHNDRBEZTHLS

Bank of China Tower Drum Fanfare for
Beijing Olympics 2008 Concert
7.9.2007 #H R KJE Bank of China Tower

HERERFEBIZNRETE

Drumming for the Olympics
15.9.2007 ¥ ¥ &% New Town Plaza

."'I".If.ﬂ.l.lr.?.‘“ 1

i £ 8 # 81X Majestic Drums IX

EE

Concert

21-22.9.2007 &B XA L E %R

Hong Kong Cultural Centre Concert Hall

& T 8f % 8 X Majestic Drums X

DABRREE

Open Rehearsal & Music Appreciation
5.12.2007 BEREFLEHR=
HKCO Rehearsal Hall

EE -

Concert

14.12.2007 BEEXLHR LS 4LEE

Hong Kong Cultural Centre Concert Hall

MRIADY Ssaulsng e T @ F M
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FhESERENHEC24NBEBRE
Final Round of the 5th Hong Kong Synergy 24 Drum Competition

15.12.2007 BB XLHLF4EE Hong Kong Cultural Centre Concert Hall

ERBENHS2UANBEEAERTLH

Accumulative Records of Hong Kong Synergy 24 Drum Competition
#2F N BUZE Total number of participants 3,260
B2 (R E Total number of participating teams 292
BEHREE Youngest participant 4
BERZEE Eldest participant 84

HHuo WERS

Nurturing of Young Musicians Contributing Towards the Community 1

~§'

-

EATSEARERSERE REY - R ERERENERD - B v e -2
2 W AEENE o BR2003E MK T B 5 o 9 E] [ B /b 4 oh 44 a5 9 & v
SSIT YN - L4 T L iFE%MIAE+ﬂJ&FhlA¢+ﬂJ'E¢ﬁmm& : “1
AESAERRLHEM - [LESLDEMIE] 8 BOERBEES BB

AL BUMAERSEECEN  MEFLZE  FULRELSREKE
MRE - ZEBFRERNARZ2E (AREHR) S48  XBEZHRERE [BERABEEES]  [HES
RiEeTHE] ~ [HELEHZHL] - [REEFLERBE] © [REEFE] - [MERTHES] - [&
BHERBXI®FPL] - [BEEBLFE] » [BRARRESEEATL]  [EEEQSENHE] &
[ZREES] @ WFERBHESAALRR -

The Orchestra attaches great importance to music education and training. HKCO actively promotes Chinese
music through outreach performances in communities and at schools. In addition to the establishment of
Hong Kong Children Orchestra and Hong Kong Junior Chinese Orchestra, HKCO has also introduced a
“Mentorship Programme” and a “Professional Orchestral Internship Programme”, both of which enjoyed a
warm response from local musical institutions and those in mainland China. The Music for Love Scheme
was set up with the theme to give members of the disadvantaged groups a chance to learn about cultural
art and the beauty of Chinese music through live performances, families from different social service
organizations were invited to “La Luna” concerts which include Apple Daily Charitable Foundation, Caritas
School Social Work Service, Caritas Lok Hing Child Care Centre, Baptist Oi Kwan Social Service, The
Salvation Army, Couple Co-creation Society, Fullness Christian Vocational Training Centre, The Boy’s
Brigade — Hong Kong, Hong Kong West
Point Baptist Elderly Center, Hong Kong
Sheng Kung Hui Welfare Council and
Hans Andersen Club.

AR 53 5 B 36 Ab i 3l

Communications and Networking

e 2007/084F HAfd - B LTI 2( FE M - WEAM KGIMEFEE RE

s FRFEBEREHABRSTINE

o HEITORIEEME

o BEPEBMMRE (Wwww.hkco.org) B2EEMMNNE L —  LhERBLBRHER - R TEIRERITH
B BALBENSINES - BELENMEMAZBIRKESSE AKX  2007/08F HifE - BIEMNEHAE2E8E -

s ETHHRNTFRANTREAZZE BRNMLERR  AUMRHLESZHEREMNER - 2007/08F
A K ZEMM 78N BE TR

® |[n 2007/08, the Orchestra issued 32 press releases and were mentioned in both local and overseas
media.

e A total of 579 articles were published via major media channels.

e Six press conferences were hosted.

e HKCO website (www.hkco.org) is one of the major interfaces for communication and serves as a resource
centre for the public. We keep providing updated information on and news of the Orchestra. HKCO
website recorded 50,000 visits and 220,000 page views in 2007/08.

e E-news were issued to friends of HKCO, the audience and the public on regularly basis to keep them
abreast of the latest developments of the Orchestra. A total of 78 e-news were issued in 2007/08.

MRIADY Ssaulsng e T @ F M
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Statement on Corporate Governance

By
BEaMn

BEAFHNEH B2 A TUEE HAFNTES  UBBUNME - wfIkETAER - A%
EERTATENERNEXNE  FEMARSABEENNGR - B2 RLENKSRRAL  THEARS
& mE BRI BRI AT R R A0 T3 8t

YERBE LKA R :
B8 1 EH &
HEAHBELT T 20084
TRRE AL 2 Ed 2009%
BB -
(200710731 FHZ5% ) e 20084
BREBIZE L .
(2007F 10831 AEHEFWHZE) BEGWE 20094
(E%?B;ﬁ/‘fi;ffﬁ)% - BE 20084
fE A
%T/‘\?g;f% B2E 20084
ﬁg%g%t i 20084
R e BE 20084
RRREBL
(200710531 5 #£5E %) R 20094
BRI o A
(200710531 H#EEEE) HE 20094

Wi BERRAELEEREESRITE - £2007F10H318

BEMBatilsH

BEESAAHIRTBERE  HOTMZERR  HEEFNRHEENVRBBEMEMER  FZALHEESEE
KigrtERE - BESOERLENKBETR  MERNLEBNERARNBRER - ZENHBLRAE
ERAERETLEERAR BELFHELEBERAAMNBET L FHEEERLA - EESERETER
HIETEEE  RBAIR MG EEELE  HELENERASRKNEE - AREEBNERRRAEMAEMTT
BAEERE -

REaRET %88

BEEeB8 TRUMNEZES  BNERSUEX B HZE@HABREATHRESE KSTREEFEMRED
T IREHNESLARESRE - AEENERT  ZESUERBEUANSBEBITRE - UREITKE

FISE B #0 TR o

l l [ \

MEREHESE TRESE ANERESS R AESS
[ : ]
ZTARE TIRME
BRRURBHLE R

RERESSEMEINSRENEMNEELEN LY  EEehEETZZEeUFERIRERET  — R
REMA—REBFE—R - WAZRZFHLFINER  BESHLEAFEE - EOBENFEARBT T
RE%  FHALFEERR84% - BMAE  THAENEBREBERNRARELFEESTEEZ -

B—LEIARANEZERERERN  BEEEREREENEREATNRFET
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BRAEKREFEHIE
MERER  Anrumzag RE EEEE
A B (84% / 9) (87% /4) (79% /5) (93% /5) (73% 14)
HERY% (HERE)
HEAMELT *100% (9) 67% (2) NEMA T iE A T iE A
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The Council

Profile of the Council

At the date of this report, the Council currently consists of ten Members. All Council Members are non-
executives and are independent. Their diverse backgrounds are essential to bring to the Orchestra a wide
range of experience and expertise from various sectors of the local community and balance the interests of
all stakeholders. The Council is the highest decision making body and it meets regularly to review present
policies and formulate future decisions.

The Council consists of the following members:

Position Expiry of Term of Office

Dr Wong Tin-yau Kelvin Chairman 2008
Mr Lai Hin-wing Henry Vice Chairman 2009
Ms Chiu Lai-kuen Susanna . . Vice Chairman 2008
(Elected on 31 October 2007 as Vice Chairman)

Dr Chan Kam-biu Joshua Hon Secretary 2009
(Elected on 31 October 2007 as Hon Secretary)

Mr Dgwe TP Au-yeung Council Member 2008
(Appointed by Government)

Mr Chung Shui-ming Council Member 2008
(Appointed by Government)

Dr Chan Wai-kai Council Member 2008
(Appointed by Government)

Ir Leung Kwong-ho Edmund Council Member 2008
Dr Carlye W L Tsui Council Member 2009
(Elected on 31 October 2007)

LA Ty Council Member 2009
(Elected on 31 October 2007)

Note: Mr Carlson Tong served the Council as Vice Chairman until 31 October 2007

Role and Responsibilities of Council

The Council is responsible for overall strategy, implementation and delegation of policy; approval of
annual and special budgets; approval of artistic direction; approval of human relations matters; and a
review of the Orchestra’s performance. The Council also monitors the strategic direction, financial status
and progress of the Orchestra’s subsidiaries: Hong Kong Children Chinese Orchestra Limited, Hong Kong
Junior Chinese Orchestra Limited and Hong Kong Young Chinese Orchestra Limited. The Council bears the
ultimate responsibility for the management of the Orchestra through close monitoring, strategy formulation,
decision-making and provision of guidance. Day-to-day operation of the Orchestra is delegated to the
Artistic Director and Executive Director jointly who are accountable to Council.

Committees of the Council

The Council has established four Committees to enhance greater efficiency, each having clearly-defined
terms of reference to focus on specialized spheres of work and report to the Council at regular meetings.
Where appropriate, the Committees make decisions on areas within their own authority to enhance efficient
execution of policies and strategies.

[ [ N \

Finance and Marketing Human Resources Nomination
Audit Committee Committee Committee Committee
|
{ |
Artistic Director Executive Director

Meetings and Attendance of the Council

To ensure the Council receives adequate and timely information to oversee the activities of the Orchestra,
the Council and Committee meetings are held regularly on a bi-monthly or quarterly basis or as required in
case of emergency or for any special situation. During the year under review there were nine meetings held
and the average attendance rate was 84%. The Artistic Director, Executive Director and representatives
from the Home Affairs Bureau (HAB) attend the Council Meetings.

Except for those meetings convened under emergency or exceptional cases, Council and Committee

meetings are conducted in accordance with the following procedure:

e The Executive Director formulates meeting schedules of the Council and the Committees on a yearly basis
and submits such meeting schedules to every participant of the meetings, including representatives of
the HAB, six months prior to the first meeting date of the year;

e The Orchestra sends a notice of meeting to every participant of the meeting two weeks prior to the
meeting date. Such notice sets out details such as the meeting time, location and agenda;

e Meeting documents are delivered to every participant of the meeting, one week prior to the meeting date,
for review and preparation;

e The Orchestra prepares the minutes after each meeting and submits them to every participant of the
meeting for review;

e The reviewed and revised minutes of the meeting are put forward at the next meeting for approval.
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Frequency of Meetings and Attendance Statistics

Al AL Marketin Nomination
Council and Audit Resources ting .
. . Committee Committee
Committee Committee

Meeting Convened
(Average attendance / 0 3 y 2 >

(84% /9) (87% /4) (79% [5) (93% /5) (73% /4)
Average number of persons)

Attendance rate % (Number of times)

Dr Wong Tin-yau Kelvin *100% (9) 67% (2) N/A N/A N/A
Mr Carlson Tong+ 20% (1) #100% (1) N/A N/A N/A
Mr Lai Hin-wing Henry 78% (7) N/A 25% (1) N/A N/A
Ms Chiu Lai-kuen Susanna 100% (9) *100% (3) N/A #67% (2) *100% (3)
Mr Davie T P Au-yeung 78% (7) N/A *100% (4) 100% (3) N/A
Dr Chan Kam-biu Joshua 78% (7) 100%(3) N/A N/A 67% (2)
Mr Chung Shui-ming 67% (6) N/A N/A N/A N/A
Dr Chan Wai-kai 78% (7) N/A 100% (4) *100% (3) N/A
Ir Leung Kwong-ho Edmund 89% (8) N/A 75% (3) N/A 100% (3)
Dr Carlye W L Tsui+ 100% (4) 50% (1) N/A N/A N/A
Mr Paul M P Chan+ 50% (2) N/A N/A N/A N/A
Mr Yan Huichang Hubert® 89% (8) N/A 75%(3) 100%(3) N/A
Ms Chin M W Celina® 100% (9) 100% (3) 100% (4) 100% (3) 100% (3)

* Chairman of Council / Sub-committee

# Chairman of sub-committee (until 31 October 2007)

+ Attendance is calculated against the number of meetings organized during the period of service
A By invitation, non Committee Member or Council Member

Remuneration and Development of the Council and Senior Administration Staff

All directors of the Council serve the Orchestra on a pro bono publico basis. The remuneration of senior
administration executives is determined by the Council on the same basis as other employees of the
Orchestra on an open contract term.

Remuneration of top 3-tiers annual salaries is analyzed as follows:

No. of Persons

Up to HK$400,000 3 3
HK$400,001 to HK$700,000 3 3
Above HK$700,000 1 1

7 7

Remark : The current reporting on the staff remuneration of Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra is subject to
further changes after consultation with the Funding Committee for the Performing Arts and Government and
updates will be provided in the version on the Hong Kong Orchestra's website.

Terms of Office

According to the Articles of Association of the Orchestra, the Council consists of no less than six members
and no more than twenty members. At least two-thirds of the Council are elected by Members of the
Orchestra and no more than one-third is appointed by the Government of the HKSAR, the funding body.
The term of office of elected Council Members is two years and retire at each AGM, with eligibility to be re-
elected, to allow for turnover and continuity.

The Council has a nomination process whereby new candidates identified for election to the Council are
formally proposed for consideration at a Council meeting, on the basis of the candidate’s professionalism,
willingness to dedicate time to Council work, commitment to good corporate governance, appreciation and
support of the Orchestra and the mission of the Orchestra, network connections and other potential value
to be added to the Orchestra. Donation to the Orchestra is not the consideration for appointment to the
Council.

The Committees
Finance and Audit Committee

The Finance and Audit Committee monitors the financial performance and reporting, budgetary control,
accounting policies and internal control. The Orchestra presents monthly financial statements to the
Committee for its independent review before endorsement. The Committee met bi-monthly, there were three
meetings during the year under review and the average attendance rate was 87%.

Chairman
Ms Chiu Lai-kuen Susanna
Mr Carlson Tong (served as Committee Chairman until 31 October 2007)

Members

Dr Wong Tin-yau Kelvin

Dr Chan Kam-biu Joshua

Dr Carlye W L Tsui

Ms Celina M W Chin (Executive Director)(By Invitation)

Human Resources Committee

The Committee advises on human resources development policies, manpower planning, staff training and
development, staff appraisal, and remuneration. The Committee met bi-monthly, there were four meetings
during the year under review and the average attendance rate was 79%.

Chairman
Mr Davie T P Au-yeung

Members

Mr Lai Hin-wing Henry

Dr Chan Wai-kai

Ir Leung Kwong-ho Edmund

Mr Yan Huichang Hubert (Artistic Director)(By Invitation)
Ms Celina M W Chin (Executive Director)(By Invitation)
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Marketing Committee

The Committee formulates policies and marketing strategies and monitors marketing, sales and fund-
raising. The Committee met bi-monthly, there were three meetings during the year under review and the
average attendance rate was 93%.

Chairman
Dr Chan Wai-kai

Members

Ms Chiu Lai-kuen Susanna (served as Committee Chairman until 31 October 2007)
Mr Davie T P Au-yeung

Mr Yan Huichang Hubert (Artistic Director)(By Invitation)

Ms Celina M W Chin (Executive Director)(By Invitation)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee advises on the criteria for selection of Council Members, recommends the best
skill-mix scenario for the Council and reviews potential candidates nominated by Members of the Orchestra.
The Committee held meetings as required, there were three meetings during the year under review and the
average attendance rate was 73%.

Chairman
Ms Chiu Lai-kuen Susanna

Members

Dr Chan Kam-biu Joshua

Ir Leung Kwong-ho Edmund

Ms Celina M W Chin (Executive Director)(By Invitation)

Stakeholders Relations

The Council met regularly for brainstorming ideas in its review of the existing strategies and performances
as well as to discuss the formulation of future strategies. Representatives from the HAB attended all
Council meetings as Observers. Various kinds of communication channels were opened up to all members
of the Orchestra. Harmonious working relations were sustained to ensure that different parties worked
together for the best interests of the Orchestra. As a non-profit-distributing organization providing service
to the people of Hong Kong, public relations were also emphasized, by providing up-to-date information on
the activities of the Orchestra in a user-friendly manner.

Regular reports and documents were submitted and published to enhance disclosure on the operation and
financial status of the Orchestra. Such reports and documents include:

Overseers Reports Frequency
Sponsors
and stakeholders Annual report yearly
HAB Funds application yearly
Audited financial statements yearly

Self-evaluation and assessment report and

a year-end report yearly
Review on number, ranking and
remuneration of staff yRzily
The Council Annual financial budget yearly
Orchestral season programme plan yearly
Procedure Manuals yearly
Audited financial statement yearly
Unaudited financial statements monthly
Concert summary bi-monthly
Guest list of complimentary tickets bi-monthly
Publicity Report bi-monthly
The Public and Audience | Season brochure yearly

Posters and leaflets of concerts 4 weeks before concert

FoHKCO Newsletter bi-monthly
Website continuous update
E-news continuous update
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Other Areas of Corporate Governance Compliance

Stewardship

Council Members and the two Principal Executives are members of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors,
participating from time to time in speaker meetings and training courses of the Institute and all have
access to the Institute’s guidelines and updates on director practices. The Chairman and Members of the
Council are frequently engaged in training directors and speaking at forums on corporate governance. The
Artistic Director has obtained a Certificate in the Role of Company Directors and the Executive Director has
obtained a Professional Diploma in Corporate Governance and Directorship.

Two-way Communications

The Orchestra organized workshops on selected subjects facilitated by Council Members. Annual Retreats
were attended by Council Members and all employees to attain effective communication concerning the
values and culture of the Orchestra.

Policies and Procedures Manuals

Defined polices, guidelines and procedures are documented in manuals and approved by the respective
Committee according to their scope, at least annually. The adopted manuals are provided to employees for
their observance and compliance in the course of discharging their duties.

Disclosure of Interest

Council Members and staff of all levels are required to make a declaration of their interests every year and
to report conflicts of interest as and when they occur. Any subsequent changes in interest during the year,
after the declaration, are to be disclosed to the Orchestra immediately.

Supporting Employees

The Orchestra provides a healthy and safe working environment for its employees and advocates equal
opportunities in recruitment and career advancement. Privacy of personal data in handling recruitment and
the staff data base is maintained.

Contributions to the Community

The Orchestra fulfills its corporate and social responsibility by organizing regular outreach concerts for
schools, elderly centres, orphanages and hospitals. Apart from offering programmes for the local public,
the Orchestra, as Hong Kong’s cultural ambassador, promotes Chinese music and Hong Kong to other
countries. In September 2005, the orchestra set up the Music for Love Scheme by giving Chinese music
performance to vulnerable groups in the community.

BEarEEfMN

Brief Biodata of Council Members and Principal Executives

ESE

BEXHEL
Chairman
el Dr Kelvin WONG

FRAFFEERARVITESTHRESZFRLE : RRIEAZESEIRRNTEZESEE  BRESTEEREE
FEFRGE  REFETEYLE  AELFERTE  AEBITHESTE X EHRIERER A REL
IRNTEERERZESTRE  EHSBETESERARBYENTES  PEEREOGRARIBY IENIT
EE LT LimitedBYFNITES  ERBEFRRBTRESFHHANZESEZE ARSI A SR ELFTE
AIZEEZE  KEGIFAEBOECD)RXERBEREZEZUKE  BERX G REFEMER AR ERKEIZER
T ZEEEKE B LFEZE =/ AEKE - EBNational Relations Institute® & : EEZ B/ Andrew
University TR EIRE LT - EBBETASIHERE L -

Executive Director and Deputy Managing Director of COSCO Pacific Limited; Chairman of Corporate
Governance Committee, Member of Executive; Deputy Chairman and Fellow, The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors; Associate Member, Chartered Institute of Bankers; Member, Hong Kong Securities Institute;
Member, Chartered Institute of Marketing; Independent Non-executive Director and Chairman of the
Audit Committee, China Metal International Holdings Inc; Independent Non-executive Director, Tradelink
Electronic Commerce Limited; Independent Non-executive Director, CIG Yangtze Ports PLC; Independent
Non-executive Director, |.T Limited, Member, China Trade Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong Trade
Development Council; Member, Auditing & Assurance Standards Committee, Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants; Member, OECD Asian Corporate Governance Roundtable; Member, Main
Board & GEM Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited; The Board of Review
(Inland Revenue Ordinance); Member, National Investor Relations Institute in the USA; Master of Business
Administrator, Andrews University in Michigan, the USA; Doctor of Business of Administrator, The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University.

ES
R EMm

Vice-Chairman

‘ Mr Henry LAI

HEEEMEBEMERBA  BEEEBEABA FEZRELBA  BRERA - BETMEM - KE KR AFE
HZNDERREREMEN  EEESREEE  FAERMLCEFTHEZR BERMEREZR SRR ¢
FEARERNPRBR20F  EALNAEARBERES  EALETERE  EAAERKHEERIART
ZRER BERBREARZEERE  BALKBEZH LM ARBUFATESMIFATES : FEZRAR
EAMELEELNEKE  FEERABRAGELAETHNREZESERE -

Partner, P C Woo & Co; Notary Public; China-Appointed Attesting Officer; Civil Celebrant of Marriages;
admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong, England and Wales and the state of Victoria, Australia; Member, The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors; Member, Solicitors Disciplinary Tribunal; Member, The Consent Committee
of The Law Society of Hong Kong; practising in the legal field for more than 26 years; Director, Ebenezer
School and Home for the Visually Impaired; Supervisor, Lock Tao Secondary School; Honorary legal adviser,
Hong Kong Juvenile Diabetes Association Limited; Member, The Hospital Governing Committee of Tseung
Kwan O Hospital; Non-executive director and independent non-executive director of listed companies in
Hong Kong and the United Kingdom; Member, Association of China-Appointed Attesting Officers Limited
Disciplinary Tribunal Panel; Member, Notaries Public Disciplinary Tribunal Panel.
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BlEE
HEBLL
Vice-Chairman

/ Ms Susanna CHIU

MNEEZ)BRARSMEEE  BESFMNASEE  SFSFMERIAHEER - BREMEZRE
Hhe (FENE) IEF  BITEEMEH M HESEHERES  AVHEHNREERE  EAEFERE

B 19N FEREER [T AGELESIE] -

Senior Vice President, Lee & Fung (Trading) Limited; Council Member, The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants; President, Institute of Accountants Exchange; Immediate Past President, Information
Systems Audit and Control Association (HK Chapter); Council Member, Overseas Member Association of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants; Member, Antiquities Advisory Board; Member, The Hong
Kong Institute of Directors; Awardee of the Chinese Women of Achievement in the UK in 1991.

EBME
PRE(GIZE L
Honorary Secretary
A Dr Joshua CHAN

BERELZEFBR  SEZREBAERABETRAABNIIERZICOZE  BEARAHKR  FHEHEETS
L BBFHERBE LR DNEBRRFABER  FEFELIUCEHRABERERZEEKE -

Prolific Hong Kong composer with over 160 compositions and arrangements written for various media
in diversified styles; Associate Professor, University of Hong Kong where he teaches composition and
electronic music; Chairman, Hong Kong Composers' Guild; Chairman, Asian Composers League; Member,
Programme and Development Committee, Leisure and Cultural Services Department.

EE (FIEZERE 2001-2006)

"R ®XIEET AF#H+L BBS MBE
Member (Past Chairman 2001-2006)

Dr Carlye TSUI BBS JP MBE

FAEZRQTRAY BAESTRS BATIEMEBE REERSSERES  BFEMRIEEAR
AA - RERMRBERBERAR  BABERERRABUIIFATES  AFEL  EEPHEEES -
2001-2006 B EEX/F : BEFRACHHR, BEREHEERAZE  AIMBRRAEEETRRAZEE, ALEF
BEANEE, RHEMBEE (FES®) AIgX/F, B8  1981FFB T RELEF © 1992FFBH L EAE
BREBLAL - 1997 EREFTHREEHE - 2003FHERMEFLE - 2007 FEBEL AEKen GouldingH
i [BRREBL] &

Chief Executive Office, The Hong Kong Institute of Directors; Fellow: The Hong Kong Institute of Directors,
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, British Computer Society; Independent Non-Executive Director: AXA
Financial Services Trustees Limited, Fu Ji Food and Catering Services Holdings Ltd, Roadshow Holdings
Limited; Justice of the Peace; Council Member and 2001-2006 Council Chairman, Hong Kong Chinese
Orchestra; Former District Councillor, Wan Chai District Council; Former Member, Boardcasting Authority;
Councillor, Former Urban Council & Provisional Urban Council; Former Chairman, The Outstanding Young
Persons’ Association; Founder Chairman, British Computer Society (Hong Kong Section); Awards: 1981
Awardee of Ten Outstanding Young Persons Selection, 1992 IT (Information Technology) Achiever of the
Year, 1997 Member of the Most Excellent Order of the British Empire, 2003 Bronze Bauhinia Star, 2007 the
Middlesex University Ken Goulding Prize for the most outstanding Professional Doctorate.

E=
EEEREE

Member

Mr Davie AU-YEUNG

EAREEECERSE BABEREESALLESREREES BAMEENTERERZRE  BEMME LT
RAIZBMIERITES -

Fellow, The Hong Kong Institute of Directors; Treasurer and Council Member, Hong Kong Committee for
UNICEF, United Nations Children Fund; Executive Committee Member, The Hong Kong Anti-Cancer Society;
Independent Non-Executive Director of two listed companies in Hong Kong.

=
EWAAFEHLT GBS
Member

_,A < Mr Chung Shui Ming GBS JP
BERSHAASEFREE BAZHALMARBYINTES  BERAHTAERESER  ABEEZEEE
CEEMBNEZESEE  AIBAEEERSER  AIEARITHRETREHEKE  BIEARFTTHREBN
THESERITHRER  2EBRES  ABERLEERLZE2EIEF -

Fellow Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants; Independent Non-executive
Director of several listed companies in Hong Kong; Chairman, Council of the City University of Hong
Kong; Chairman, Fund Management Sub-committee of Hong Kong Housing Authority; Former Chairman,
Hong Kong Housing Society; Former Member, HKSAR Executive Council; Former Chief Executive, HKSAR
Government Land Fund Trust; Member, National Committee of the Chinese People's Political Consultative
Conference; Vice Chairman, Board of Governors of the Hong Kong Philharmonic Orchestra.

BE
REEEBL

Member

Dr Chan Wai Kai

ERFReRENBERIREF/NEFERE AR ERERRE  BEEEEVERESIEF  BBLF
BHEEE ASEFELERTE YUERFEEERAEEEZESRREMMBEEZS -

Secondary School Principal of Hong Kong Baptist University Affiliated School Wong Kam Fai Secondary
and Primary School; Council Member, Hong Kong Academy of Performing Arts; Vice-chairman, Hong Kong
Direct Subsidy Scheme Schools Council (DSSSC); Director, Hong Kong Adventure Corps; Fellow, The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors; Member of Information Session Division, Committee on Home School Co-
operation, EDB.
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I

B=E
RERAFHLT
Member

Ir Edmund K H Leung OBE JP

BE (BN ) BRAR - FRAL M8 (M) BRABER : ELEEERRLARF  PEEZBEOBRAA
BUFNTEST BERGEEREFTRKE  EFRBHAZESLIR  (THRLFZESZE  MREEER
EZB AEIREMBGHER  EMAREZRAIKE : FEEMABRAAEFE  RERMTIRESZESE
B BRIER °

Advisor: Parsons Brinckerhoff (Asia) Ltd, Evans & Peck (Asia) Pte. Ltd; Independent Non-Executive
Director, Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd and CIG Yangtze Ports PLC; Board Member, Airport Authority
Hong Kong; Chairman, Energy Advisory Committee; Board Member, Administrative Appeal; Member, The
Town Planning Board; Former President, The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers; Former Council Member,
Lingnan University; Former Vice Chairman, The Hong Kong Council of Academic Accreditation; Former
Chairman, Hong Kong Branch of The Institution of Mechanical Engineers.

BE

RERAFEHLT

Member

JE b Mr Paul M P Chan MH JP

ERERSHAMEBAERARNNIE, EESHMASHERAFHFLARBEHMASEELGALIE, T8
PXREBHREBNBREBERTABNFOHE, FERMEREDREBEELEEEZFIERBEXRE AN
REENERF  TEXBERZESNMEFTESERE, [HAEZR] TFLLME [RBEEIE] £/F; 2006%F
ERERFERKREBHE  WR2007FHEE/ANFHL -

Chairman of PCP CPA Limited; Former President of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICPA) and former Chairman of ACCA-HK; Adjunct Associate Professor of The Chinese University of
Hong Kong and the City University of Hong Kong; Chairman of the Legal Aid Services Council and the
Professional Services Advisory Committee of HKTDC, member of the Strategic Development Commission
and the Beat Drugs Fund Association; Chairman of Friends of Caritas and a past Chairman of Breakthrough
Limited; Awarded a Medal of Honour by the HKSAR government in July 2006 and was appointed as Justice
of the Peace in July 2007.

BilTME / BEHEE
M= S %&£ BBS

Artistic Director / Principal Conductor
Mr Yan Huichang Hubert BBS

1987 FH B EEETPERTFTER —NIEE - B1997F6 A BRI ESP LB ZLBE - N2003F10A
BENABAEREFERE BAROLEEELR B8 82 FNELRBESSHAEEETLE  MmHE
MIEEA ERDNBEAINER —FEE - RIFRARPEESI - ISP RNAFRELERIEIE - YiEEPHPRIE
%8 tRSLETEIELE  FYUREZLERBENTLEZLES - i BRKERBRNEILAE  EiE
ME o 2001498 @ BIKEFILIFTEE [2001F LB ] @ EARERIA (PFEEREMRE ALY - BF
2000F BB EMIERTELZE  BTABMEER [EB:TE] TEZERBMEAM - 2004 FRERETZME
LEIRBEHI ° 2004F - HRKEFBRFITRETHREEERAZALES  REUOREEF LT BERRZ - B
2008%F @ MRS EZFNEFHSEBH BEAETRNTIZeFRIE (BEH) -

Yan Huichang was conferred the title of National Class One Conductor at the First Professional Appraisal of China in
1987. He was appointed Music Director of the Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra in June 1997. He was retitled Artistic
Director and Principal Conductor in October 2003. Yan was a conductor for all professional Chinese orchestras in
Beijing, Shanghai, Taiwan, Singapore and Hong Kong, Yan has won the acclaim of the music circles in China and
abroad for his artistic and conducting talents. In addition to playing an active role on the Chinese music scene,
Yan has also been involved in music of other genres, he has worked with China National Symphony Orchestra,
Philharmonic Orchestra of Beijing Concert Hall, Shenzhen Symphony Orchestra of China and Russian Philharmonic
Orchestra of Moscow. Yan is also actively engaged in composition and won many awards. Yan was awarded the
'Cultural Medallion (Music)' by the National Arts Council of Singapore in September 2001. His achievements were
simultaneously documented in The Famous Figures of the Contemporary Arts Circles in China. In 2000, he was a
member of the Hong Kong Council for Academic Accreditation, and an Examiner and Arts Advisor of the Hong Kong
Arts Development Council for Grants. Since 2004, he has been a Visiting Professor in many music conservatories.
Yan was awarded a Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) by the Chief Executive of HKSAR in 2004 in recognition of his
remarkable achievements in Chinese music as well as his efforts in promoting Chinese music. In 2008, he won the
Jurors' Award for Conducting at the 6th China Gold Record Awards - Multi Arts Category.

TR BB
BHELL
Executive Director

-l I Ms Celina M W Chin

FOENBESRBEERL  ARNEETNERAREARERXEFAA  TREBMMNBEHAEMAHHRER
FHMOBRBIMTRIIRRE - 1989F AR MR EBE - BHARRTEEBIE - BIMNEME - P BEIZ LS
EPERETE  BERGESRBMBEREBRY - LNR2001FHEPLERMERERBESRER S ETHRAE
E-AAES2ges  AREMERRE (BMTR) BR FETLHeE —REER  AAERXREBMERL
MALBMR A AZ B FE TRRRMERE/ NEE 5 (2006) - ERAIER  EDENBAZNER - RBEUETE
HE - BYLERR  UREAHNRBREMABEE T ELRER -

Master of Arts in Strategic Management for Non-Distributing Organisation; holder of The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors Diploma in Company Direction and Professional Diploma in Corporate Governance &
Directorship; graduate of Professional Programme in Arts Administration organised by UCLA and former USD;
joined the Cultural Services Section of the former Urban Services Department in 1989 and since then has worked
in offices serving the Hong Kong Repertory Theatre, Festival of Asian Arts, Chinese Music Festival, Hong Kong
International Film Festival, Hong Kong International Arts Carnival and Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra; appointed
the first Executive Director of Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra Limited. Member, The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors; Arts Advisors (Arts Administration) Hong Kong Arts Development Council; First Vice Chairman,
Hong Kong Chinese Instrumental Music Association; Member, Consultative Committee on the Core Arts and
Cultural Facilities of the West Kowloon Cultural District, Performing Arts and Tourism Advisory Group(2006).
Rich experience in aspects of corporate governance, directing of non-profit-distributing organisation, strategic
marketing and image building, as well as event and performing arts business project management.
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2001548188  AQAREREFTBRFR
THREBRNELEXLESEEE T P E
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FETEBREEHE—NEXRTLE LI
RESKBBOFLEZ —  BHOKHEE
BERREEELOIRARLZEEFm - NAF]
EEBNEEXHBRERTRBIL N LEEH
B #eaEXZRBRIAEMRRFRAEERX
b BEAHENLE  UNEBRSEHRE -
¥E - R BRESMAKRTESTEL - KF
EEENTIEXBHHEEALREREE -

E 3

B ZE2008F3A31RHI  ARAIREEHNE
BREERBERIENAFRES2AEEETT
E o

B & Bk i

ARBREEFANEBHESEEREBEONBFIE
SIB I A F P FE13 -

REPORT OF THE COUNCIL MEMBERS

The Council Members present their report and the audited
financial statements of Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra
Limited (the “Company”) and the Group for the year ended
31 March 2008.

Principal activities

With effect from 1 April 2001, the Company took over
from Leisure and Cultural Services Department of the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region the running of the Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra.

The Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra is the only professional
Chinese orchestra in Hong Kong and one of the largest
and most renowned of its type in the world. The Company
and the Group present symphonic music based on
traditional folk repertoires and full-scale contemporary
compositions. The principal activities of the Company and
the Group consist of providing Chinese music programmes
of different styles to blend the diverse artistic expressions
and techniques of today with the traditional culture of
China in interpretation of metropolitan life, as well as
rendering promotion, education, research and development
of traditional and modern Chinese music. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group's principal
activities during the year.

Results

The Group's deficit for the year ended 31 March 2008 and
its state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 52 to
77.

Plant and equipment

Details of movements in the plant and equipment of the
Company and the Group during the year are set out in note
13 to the financial statements.
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Council

The Council Members of the Company during the year and
up to date of this report were:

Wong Tin Yau, Kelvin
Tong Carlson

Lai Hin Wing, Henry
Chiu Lai Kuen, Susanna

Chairman)

retired on 31 October 2007)
Vice Chairman)

elected as Vice Chairman on
31 October 2007)

—_— o~~~

Au-yeung Tsan Pong, Davie
Chan Kam Biu, Joshua (elected as Hon Secretary on
31 October 2007)

Chan Wai Kai

Chung Shui Ming

Leung Kwong Ho, Edmund
Tsui Wai Ling, Carlye
Chan Mo Po, Paul

(elected on 31 October 2007)
(elected on 31 October 2007)

In accordance with article 50 of the Company's articles of
association, the Chairman and Vice-Chairmen will retire
from their respective offices and shall be eligible for re-
election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Council Members' interests

At no time during the year was the Company and its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Company's Council Members to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.

Council Members' interests in contracts

No Council Members had a significant beneficial interest
either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance
to the business of the Company to which the Company and
its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Auditors

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their
reappointment as auditors of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE COUNCIL

Kelvin Wong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 20 August 2008
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HEBTLEARARIINEE
(RBBEMRILZBEEREREERT)

AZEBMEBZIENRE2EETTERBH
SUEBRAB P BRE - WHBREEBER
2008 3H3TBZERAAIEEBEREH
EZHIEFEZEAREIR  REeRZEFHE
MGABEERER  UNTEBESTHREHEER
EH MM EmRE o

Bl 0 W B W R AURYE 2 AT

BEBERARBEEEGMMASRHcEAY
BHRERARBBERRGHTAERREENZ
MERBLEEM AT RZFEMHHRSE -
EEMERRERA  BERAGEERREIEEM
DD R SRR AR 2 MERES] - AEH
BRI T FEHNRFFERMER 2 ERHE
MR EBENEAEE 2@ BREEER
TEHAEZ @5t hE -

B B 2 54

AZBMZETERBERM2EREZENH
WREBER - NEBEDZRRQAEDIE
14115 - BRAEB|E © BRULASN - A EKED
ZHMESTAIBEREMAE o NZBEN A5
AREEZANE HEMEMA LB EHKE
ERAME

AZBMERBETEGHMAGHMcBEESE
FHERIETTER o E LR B RAZ AN E T
BRAE - TR MATESR - ASEET I
EPBHRRRE N FAEMERE R -

INDEPENDENT AUTITORS’ REPORT

To the members of Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability by
guarantee)

We have audited the financial statements of Hong Kong
Chinese Orchestra Limited set out on pages 52 to 77,
which comprise the consolidated and Company balance
sheets as at 31 March 2008, and the consolidated
statement of income and expenditure, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

Council Members' responsibility for the
financial statements

The Council Members of the Company are responsible
for the preparation and the true and fair presentation
of these financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in
the circumstances.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

BRI RRTEFABRREBUBREAED
BEBEBEEN 2 EREE - IEE 2 EFIUR
RAZEE 2 #IE - BT AR RFERERM
YRR BRI FEEABRRM Z AR - 7T
Mz ERRE  ZBMEERZARRENE
B AT R % HwR AR 2 A EBES] - A
RABEZEZERF  BXIFRYRAZ A
PR ZBRERKRER - ERNBREFEESEM
KAz G BRE 2B R AL 2 85t A
ZEEN  URFEBYBERR ZEBI®T
# o

ARG RPMEGZEREERAR
MEZWARMZEZERIREER -

HR

TZHMRE  ZEVBRREBEDTBUH
RMEENEEMAFHMRMEATILEERR
2008F3A3TAZEBMRARESEEHEZAE
HFEZEBEBRRRERE  TEERBEBAF
EPIREBEEBEEN A ELBRE -

LK G B AT
HEZETE
F# - 2008F8AH20H

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and
fair presentation of the financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the Council Member, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 March 2008 and of the Group’s deficit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 20 August 2008
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BB B L 8 HONG KONG CHINESE ORCHESTRA LIMITED
(BEEREBRET AR Limited by Guarantee)

2 B W 3 &

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
HZ=2008%3H31HILFE Year ended 31 March 2008

FrteE

Notes

sEES BRES 2008 LEE: BREE: 2007

General Fund Devle:lopment Yy General Development @

B HKS und Total Fund Fund Total

BEHKS BEHKS BEHKS BEHKS BEHKS

5,649,065 2,726,374 8,275,429 4,631,942 1,872,474 6,504,416
48,178,000 - 48,178,000 48,178,000 - 48,178,000
2,140,625 4,528,439 6,669,064 707,720 1,060,003 1,767,723
- 1,955,594 1,955,594 - 1,866,100 1,866,100
1,225,100 205,419 1,430,519 1,276,069 169,578 1,445,647
57,092,780 9,415,826 66,508,606 54,793,731 4,968,155 59,761,886
8,978,789 8,000,768 16,979,557 6,672,030 1,614,988 8,287,018
39,637,964 2,084,927 41,722,891 38,787,243 1,812,100 40,599,343
3,440,764 354,108 3,794,872 2,906,718 69,504 2,976,222
5,915,750 128,641 6,044,391 6,197,901 49,129 6,247,030
57,973,267 10,568,444 68,541,711 54,563,892 3,545,721 58,109,613
(880,487) (1,152,618) (2,033,105) 229,839 1422434 1,652,273

BB HMRL 8 HONG KONG CHINESE ORCHESTRA LIMITED
(BEEREREAAA Limited by Guarantee)

moBERAR®
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
200843 A31H 31 March 2008

Bt &x
Not

13

15
16

17

18

BRES 2008 BRES 2007
EEEE Development HE EE8= Development HE
General Fund General Fund
B HKS Fund Total B HKS Fund Total
B HKS B HKS B HKS B HKS

792,876 - 792,876 903,198 - 903,198
328,405 - 328,405 467,615 - 467,615
2,013,425 3,031,294 5,044,719 2,335,996 37,223 2,373,219
12,384,894 2,052,765 14,437,659 13,212,581 4,990,121 18,202,702
14,726,724 5,084,059 19,810,783 16,016,192 5,027,344 21,043,536
5,084,495 2,151,907 7,236,402 5,603,798 942,574 6,546,372
9,642,229 2,932,152 12,574,381 10,412,394 4,084,770 14,497,164
10,435,105 2,932,152 13,367,257 11,315,592 4,084,770 15,400,362
10,435,105 2,932,152 13,367,257 11,315,592 4,084,770 15,400,362

E X Kelvin Wong

¥ /& Chairman

#EEY8 Susanna Chiu
Z|= % Vice-Chairman
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B % BB L 8 HONG KONG CHINESE ORCHESTRA LIMITED
(BEEREBRET AR Limited by Guarantee)

mMOERZEE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZ2008%3H31HILFE Year ended 31 March 2008

EiEEE BREZ
General Fund Development Fund
B4 HKS B HKS

11,085,753 2,662,336

229,839 1,422,434
11,315,592 4,084,770
(1880,487) (1,152,618)
10,435,105 2,932,152

Y
Total
B HKS

13,748,089
1,652,273
15,400,362

(2,033,105)

13,367,257

B % BB L 8 HONG KONG CHINESE ORCHESTRA LIMITED
(BEEREREAAA Limited by Guarantee)

s REHRa2%
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
HZE200843 8318 ILFEE Year ended 31 March 2008

iEE

Notes

2008
B HKS

(2,033,105)

(683,588)
656,554
(2,060,139)
139,210
(2,671,500)
690,030

(3,902,399)

683,588
(546,232)

137,356

(3,765,043)
18,202,702

14,437,659

3,437,659
11,000,000

14,437,659

2007
B HKS

1,652,273

(587,328)
840,256
1,905,201
(26,817)
(1,429,642)
1,159,050

1,607,792

587,328

(536,821)

50,507

1,668,299

16,544,403

18,202,702

18,202,702

18,202,702
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Bi#PLEBEFIR 2 8 HONG KONG CHINESE ORCHESTRA LIMITED

(BEERAER ST AT Limited by Guarantee)

BEAR®
BALANCE SHEET

200843 H31H 31 March 2008

BRE: 2008 BRES 2007
e 3 Ak
ot BERS Development  #§ BEES Development  #
N General Fund General Fund
otes B HKS Fund Total B HKS Fund Total
B HKS B HKS B HKS B HKS
JEi7ENZE & NON CURRENT ASSETS
BB 13 792,876 . 792876 903,198 - 903,198
Plant and eguipment
HBA D% " 6 ) 5 ) ) )
Interests in subsidiaries
792,882 - 792,882 903,198 - 903,198
iRENE E CURRENT ASSETS
+h
TR ) 15 328,405 - 328,405 467,615 - 467,615
Accounts receivable
NENERS H fihi e =
afya Eﬁ&’fﬁﬂﬁwqﬁﬂ : 16 2,013,425 3,031,294 5,044,719 2,335,996 37,223 2,373,219
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
& RBITHER ) 17 12,384,888 2,052,765 14,437,653 13,212,581 4,990,121 18,202,702
Cash and cash equivalents
14,726,718 5,084,059 19,810,777 16,016,192 5,027,344 21,043,536
iRENE {8 CURRENT LIABILITIES
< Eod >
EHE”Aﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ L 18 5,084,495 2,151,907 7,236,402 5,603,798 942,574 6,546,372
Creditors and accrued liabilities
MEBEEFE
NET CURRENT ASSETS 9,642,223 2,932,152 12,574,375 10,412,394 4,084,770 14,497,164
BEETE
NET ASSETS 10,435,105 2,932,152 13,367,257 11,315,592 4,084,770 15,400,362
i 10,435,105 2,932,152 13,367,257 11,315,592 4,084,770 15,400,362
RESERVES H il H il il il il il il il il il

X Kelvin Wong
=& Chairman

#E 8 Susanna Chiu
2| & Vice-Chairman

BHPLBEFIR 2 8 HONG KONG CHINESE ORCHESTRA LIMITED

(BERAR ST AT Limited by Guarantee)

Bl 15 ¥R 7% B i
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
200843 H31H 31 March 2008

1. AuER 1.

RABR2001F2A7TREBT BN K
M AEEREREERAR - BEAF
SBUBELLRRBEI00TT °

ARABWEMGI BB LREFAB
H345 §F PR AETHE -

FR - AEERHIRBEL NPT LEE
B #EERZEIREMRRFIEZE
BHEXCARBARMBENEE - URIE
BEFEHEE  #E  HARMNERELM
RARPBEZL -

AR RIP2002478 A 14 B BT HE AR
VERES  UEB—LETHIIARK
BT AR EBEE N 2+ B S5 E
A ARAMERESEAR A
BRI L MBERESRANIER
BFESHES L - BESRR/EMIEA
AU BERIGNDFHE5IEER
EMRRIARAESHERES -

2.1 Rk ® 2.1
BEHEIRRESRHMASEG Y

AR
BEMBRERER (FEEMBEEEY
BmERER - BE G LR R E
BRELEBRFEAZEHERRBBARRK
2 WEREMRE - AU BRRZA
SR AE R R B AR - TBEMEHRE
BABTREM - TAANEEZYEE

CORPORATION INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in Hong Kong on
7 February 2001 with limited liability by guarantee.
The liability of the Members is limited to HK$100 per
Member.

The registered office of the Company is located at
7/F, Sheung Wan Municipal Services Building, 345
Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in providing
Chinese music programmes of different styles to blend
the diverse artistic expressions and techniques of today
with the traditional culture of China in interpretation
of metropolitan life, as well as rendering promotion,
education, research and development of traditional and
modern Chinese music.

Pursuant to the Government's approval on 14
August 2002, a Development Fund was set up for
the funding of non-subvented activities which fall
outside the ambit of Government subvention and
will be used for organising events and activities to
further promote Chinese music. The General Fund
accounts for all Government subvented activities
and the Development Fund accounts for all non-
subvented activities. The council members consider
that it is more appropriate to present the financial
results and positions of these funds as separate
columns to reflect the actual results of these funds.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for
government grants which have been measured at
fair value. These financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is also the Group’s
functional currency.
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Bi#PLEBEFIR 2 8 HONG KONG CHINESE ORCHESTRA LIMITED

(BERABREL AR Limited by Guarantee)

Rl 15 ¥ 7% B i
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
20083 H31H 31 March 2008

2.2 Hial REBITZFEBMHER 2.2
W 2

AEBERAFE 2 M BEHRKRERERN
THHFIREET BB B REE
A o B F AT RAEFTERI R 2 RE
BAMBHRRLBEATE -

BN HRE SRITE: BE
AR ETR

BB g ER BEAREE

B 215K

RNZ S MBI B AN B REE
Az EBFEMT

(a) BAMBHELRNFETR [£8T
B WE

% RIAR TE 2 B FR AL E B A R
ZEREHAEEZERITAL
EZURZEERTAEEZA
BZMEE M2 EEH R - FTH
BEAREBAVHRE BEX
BREHASEE 2 MBIRR L EE
XEVEFE GTEEREHLTE
AR RFERIIR

(b) BAGHEAFEIF ZEW [M
MR 2| — BEARKE]

ZERTRERNEEIELHWE -
AEMBHRER2EREHAKE
EAEEMBER BELEERFE
HFFfh - ZREFMERBERY R
FMIFE215R ©

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has adopted the following new and
revised HKFRSs for the first time for the current
year’s financial statements. The adoption of these
new and revised standards and interpretation has
had no material effect on these financial statements.

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures
HKAS 1 Amendment Capital Disclosures

The principal effects of adopting these new and
revised HKFRSs changes in accounting policies are
as follows:

(a) HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

This standard requires disclosures that enable
users of the financial statements to evaluate
the significance of the Group’s financial
instruments and the nature and extent of risks
arising from those financial instruments. The
new disclosures are included throughout the
financial statements. While there has been
no effect on the financial position or results
of operations of the Group, comparative
information has been included/revised where
appropriate.

(b)  Amendment to HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Capital disclosures

This amendment requires the Group to make
disclosures that enable users of the financial
statements to evaluate the Group’s objectives,
policies and processes for managing capital.
These new disclosures are shown in note 21 to
the financial statements.

BHPLBEFIR 2 8 HONG KONG CHINESE ORCHESTRA LIMITED

(BERAR ST AT Limited by Guarantee)

Bl 15 ¥R 7% B 5E
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
20083 H31H 31 March 2008

23 CHMHMEYREBBFE 23
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IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Company has not applied the new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements. The Group
is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon
initial application. So far, it has concluded that
while the adoption of HKAS 1 (Revised) may result
in new or amended disclosures, the application
of these new and revised HKFRSs are unlikely to
have a significant impact on the Group's results of
operations and financial position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March
2008. The results of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are consolidated
from or to their effective dates of acquisition or
disposal, respectively. All significant intercompany
transactions and balances within the Group are
eliminated on consolidation.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity in which the Company,
directly or indirectly, controls more than half of its
voting power or issued share capital or controls
the composition of its Council of the Company; or
over which the Company has a contractual right to
exercise a dominant influence with respect to that
entity’s financial and operating policies.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s statement of income and expenditure to
the extent of dividends received or receivable. The
Company’s interest in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less any impairment losses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party, directly or indirectly through one or
more intermediaries: (i) controls, is controlled
by, or is under common control with, the
Group; (ii) has an interest in the Group that
gives it significant influence over the Group;
or (iii) has joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group;

(c) the party is a close member of the family of
any individual referred to in (a) or (b); or

(d) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly-
controlled or significantly influenced by or
for which significant voting power in such
entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any
individual referred to in (b) or (c); or

(e) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of the Group, or of
any entity that is a related party of the Group.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether
there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If such indication exists, the Group makes an
estimate of the asset's recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of
its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the assets. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e., a cash-
generating unit).
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2.4 B BORBER (4)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognized in the income
statement whenever the carrying amount of an
asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. The
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. A reversal of the
impairment loss is limited to the asset's carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognized in prior years. The
reversal of the impairment loss is credited to the
income statement in the year in which it arises.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that

the economic benefits will flow to the Group and

when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the

following bases:

(a) contributions from sponsors and donations,
on a cash receipt basis or in the period as
specified by the donor;

(b) performance fee, income from concerts and
other programmes, on an accrual basis;

(c) training course income, on an accrual basis;

(d) from the sale of souvenirs, when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold;

(e) interest income, on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying
the rate that discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset; and

(f)  membership fees, on a cash receipt basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Provision

A provision is recognized when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the
amount recognized for a provision is the present
value at the balance sheet date of the future
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to the
working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after items of plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
the statement of income and expenditure in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where it
can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure
has resulted in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an
item of plant and equipment, and where the cost of
the item can be measured reliably, the expenditure
is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset or
as a replacement.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line
basis to write off the cost of each item of plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Computer Equipment 33%3%
Musical Instruments 25%
Furniture and equipment 33%3%
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Plant and equipment (continued)

Where parts of an item of plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts
and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at each balance sheet date.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the
statement of income and expenditure in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group
is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating
leases, net of any incentives received from the
lessor, are charged to the statement of income and
expenditure on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency of the Group using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Exchange differences arsing from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at the year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the income
statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and demand deposits, and short
term highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group's cash management.

Financial instruments

(a) Financial assets
The Group's financial assets include accounts
receivable, deposits and other receivables and
cash and cash equivalents and are classified
and accounted for as loans and receivables.
Financial assets are recognised on the trade
date.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables are initially
recognised at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less impairment allowances.
Any change in their value is recognised in the
income statement.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs
when the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial assets expire or are transferred
and substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred. An
assessment for impairment is undertaken at
least at each balance sheet date whether
or not there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (confinued)

(a) Financial assets (continued)

Impairment loss on loans and receivables is
recognised when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all
the amounts due to it in accordance with the
original terms of the receivables. The amount
of the impairment loss is determined as the
difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows.

(b) Financial liabilities
The Group's financial liabilities include
creditors. Financial liabilities are recognised
when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at
fair value, net of transaction costs incurred
and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
Financial liabilities are derecognised when
the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged or cancelled or expires.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair
value where there is reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and all attaching conditions
will be complied with. When the grant relates to
an expense item, it is recognised as income over
the periods necessary to match the grant on a
systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to
compensate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its
employees under their employment contracts on a
calendar year basis. Under certain circumstances,
such leave which remains untaken as at the balance
sheet date is permitted to be carried forward and
utilised by the respective employees in the following
year. An accrual is made at the balance sheet
date for the expected future cost of such paid
leave earned during the year by the employees and
carried forward.

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the "MPF Scheme") under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees' basic salaries and are
charged to the statement of income and expenditure
as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group's
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Development fund

Development fund was established for the funding
of non-subvented activities, which fall outside the
ambit of Government subvention. Development fund
raised funds from public by soliciting donations and
organising Chinese music related events.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical
judgements in applying the Group's accounting
policies which have a significant effect on the
financial statements are set out below.

Impairment of assets

The Group determines whether an asset is
impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires
an estimation of the value in use of the asset.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group
to make an estimate of the expected future cash
flows from the asset and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows.

GOVERNMENT SUBSIDY

The Group's Government subsidy represents
subsidy from the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region for providing Chinese
musical programmes of different styles. There are
no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to
these grants.
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5. #i3 & B B DONATIONS AND SPONSORSHIPS

£ E KA 7R Group and Company

6. L4t A OTHER REVENUE

EEE: HEEE  31Mach ZEEE HEESE 31 March
General Fund Development 2008  General Fund Development 2007
fund % Total fund 8% Total
EHEHKS EBMHKS EWHKS EWHKS ENHKS BEBY¥HKS
1,655,625 4,525,439 6,181,064 667,720 - 667,720
485,000 3,000 488,000 40,000 1,060,003 1,100,003
2,140,625 4,528,439 6,669,064 707,720 1,060,003 1,767,723
% E XA 7 Group and Company
EEE: HEEE 31 Mach ZEE: HEEE 31 March
General Fund Development 2008 General Fund Development 2007
fund ¥ Total fund 8% Total
B HKS EBEHKS BEHKS BEHKS BEHKS BEHKS
53,165 - 53,165 67,410 - 67,410
572,061 111,527 683,588 477,253 110,075 587,328
384,042 7,176 391,218 381,303 8,597 389,900
215,832 86,716 302,548 350,103 50,906 401,009
1,225,100 205,419 1,430,519 1,276,069 169,578 1,445,647
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

200843 H31H 31 March 2008

7. HRRAE®RH CONCERT PRODUCTION COSTS

& [® K A7) Group and Company

EEES ZEEE 31Mach EEFEES ZEREE 31 March
General Fund Development 2008  General Fund Development 2007

fund $E Total fund 8% Total

B HKS EMHKS EWHKS EBHKS EWHKS BY¥HKS
2,324,563 2,916,781 5241344 1451225 524,404 1,975,629
347,231 2,376,229 2,723,460 438,994 323,516 762,510
1,963,930 78,723 2,042,653 1,730,868 105230 1,836,098
1,603,622 18,151 1,621,773 893,802 19,380 913,182
2,739,443 2,610,884 5,350,327 2,157,141 642458 2,799,599
8,978,789 8,000,768 16,979,557 6,672,030 1,614,988 8,287,018

8. 3% M A B Bl % PAYROLL AND RELATED EXPENSES
£ B %A 7] Group and Company
EZEEE BEEE  31Mach EEFESE HEEZ 31 March
General Fund Development 2008 General Fund Development 2007

fund 88 Total fund $88) Total

BHEHKS BEHKS EBEHKS EE¥HKS EBEHKS BEHKS
27,991,071 1,281,721 29,272,792 27,808,905 1,252,409 29,061,314
4,684,788 200,989 4,885,777 4,642,396 86,236 4,728,632
557,860 - 557,860 542,280 - 542,280
28,604 - 28,604 27,114 - 27,114
5,005,824 574,067 5,579,891 4,695,403 451,372 5,146,775
175,925 28,150 204,075 167,994 22,083 190,077
1,193,892 - 1,193,892 903,151 - 903,151
39,637,964 2,084,927 41,722,891 38,787,243 1,812,100 40,599,343
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9. H fib %% % I}l ¥ OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

% E A7 Group and Company

EEE: ZEBER 31March TEE: HEEE 31 March
General Fund Development 2008 General Fund Development 2007

fund % Total fund % Total

BEHKS EEMHKS BEEHKS EEHKS EEHKS BEHKS
1,861,800 - 1,861,800 1,453,200 - 1,453,200
656,554 - 656,554 840,256 - 840,256

1,640,330 128,641 1,768,971 1,500,510 49,129 1,549,639

235,464 - 235,464 405,284 - 405,284
1,424,252 - 1424252 1,929,271 - 1,929,271
97,350 - 97,350 69,380 - 69,380
5,915,750 128,641 6,044,391 6,197,901 49,129 6,247,030

10. 4EJ¥ Pi 8 % 8%/ SURPLUS/DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR

REERFEMSREK/BREHK TIIER ¢

The Group's surplus/ deficit for the year is arrived at after charging:

£ E &2 7 Group and Company

ZEEs HEEE  31March EZiEEE HEEE 31 March
General Fund Development 2008 General Fund Development 2007

fund % Total fund 8% Total

BHHKS BEHKS E¥HKS BEHKS BEHKS BEHS
60,000 - 60,000 50,000 - 50,000
656,554 - 656,554 840,256 - 840,256
1,800,000 - 1,800,000 1,380,000 - 1,380,000

RARREE2008FE3A31BILEEFREE  The deficit for the year ended 31 March 2008 dealt with in
B AEHE2,033,1057T (20074 BB the financial statements of the Company is HK$2,033,105
1,652,2737T) (2007: surplus HK$1,652,273).

11. BEFm 4 11. COUNCIL MEMBERS' REMUNERATION

AANFIEBEEeKEMEREE NIEMT No council members received or are going to

B =M EE ] B A s B & (2007 5 - receive any remuneration in respect of their services
;) o during the year (2007: Nil).

Rl 15 ¥R 7% B 5E
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12. BiMH 12. TAX
AATARE (BISIES) S8siEk

The Company has been exempted under Section
N o = 7S BT I O/ I 3= B B 88 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance from all taxes

MEARLBBEFESHIEL #ME - (2007 under the Ordinance. As a result, no provision for
& E) Hong Kong profits tax has been made in these

financial statements. (2007: Nil)

13. HE% %3 f§ PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

£ B X% /A 7] Group and Company
EM R E3] ShEERE ¥ Total

Furniture and  Musical Computer
equipment Instruments Equipment
EBEHKS BEHKS EEHKS BEHKS

2,017,621 1,626,774 637,082 4,281,447
(1,299,570) (1,537,639) _ (541,070) (3,378,279)
718,051 89,135 96,012 903,198

718,051 89,135 96,012 903,198
207,340 295,929 42,963 546,232
(425,894) (157,865)  (72,795) (656,554)
499,497 227,199 66,180 _ 792,876

2179961 1922703 680,045 4,782,709
(1,680,464) (1,695504)  (613,865) (3,989,833)
499497 227,199 66,180 792,876

1524451 1603942 616263 3,744,656
(1 888,963) (1,208,927)  (440,133) (2,538,023)
635488 395015 _ 176,130 1,206,633

635,488 395,015 176,130 1,206,633

493,170 22,832 20,819 536,821
( 410,607) (328,712) (100,937) (840,256)
718,051 89,135 96,012 903,198

2,017,621 1,626,774 637,082 4,281,477
(1,299,570) (1,537,639)  (541,070) (3,378,279)
718,051 89,135 96,012 903,198
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14. BB 2 v HE2s INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

/AE) Company

2008 2007
HK$ &#s HK$ &
S LR © A 6 6
Unlisted shares, at cost
BN RINBARKIE ®
Due to subsidiaries - )
6 _

ENZHMBARNFIBEIREER  2ELERTERD -
The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

FTEMBARZFBHOT :
Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows:
oo FREE LR ED
e
MUREENE e =Lt
- Place of x Percentage of equity TEER
478 Name . . Nominal value of i . . o
incorporation and . . directly attributable Principal activities
. issued ordinary share
operations capital to the Company
= 2008 2007
EERERLEARAT B BT L0 10 TER
Hong Kong Children Chinese Orchestra Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Dormant
BB ERLEARAT B BEOE L TER
Hong Kong Junior Chinese Orchestra Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Dormant
EAEDERREERAT i BEL L 10 TR
Hong Kong Young Chinese Orchestra Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Dormant

il 15 ¥R 7% B i
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15.

HE Wi =k

RAIREENELEEZRATEUE
ErARE - -EEH-—RE—E=ZMAE
H o RRF R EBHREREBRIRRE
FEGEMNES - EEES TR EH
PR - BN ERIBERARARR REE
ZRERBIRREZ A AEEFER - Bt
YEEERBRBHER 2BER - BYRIK
AATEAE -

R B! o 5 88 5 E AR E FE W B 5 3%
THZRE DM -

BHONIER
Less than 1 month past due

BHTE3MER

1 to 3 months past due

A3 E6MEA
3 to 6 months past due

B BB KRR E 2 YR IA R % & K
SEAERTFERCHRCBIEF AR -
REBEBELR  AKEEFTRIEAR
HEEBRELRERE  HREEEE
WEEXES  MxFEHRIDERRA
2EUE - ARBLERZFERTE
ERER R E M EERTT -

15.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES

The Company's and Group's sales of concert tickets
are mainly conducted on credit. The credit period
is generally for a period of one to two months.
The Company and the Group seek to maintain
strict control over their outstanding receivables.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and
the fact that the the Company's and the Group's
accounts receivables relate to a large number
of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. Accounts receivable are
non-interest-bearing.

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are
neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired is as follow:

£ E K25 Group and Company
2008 2007
B HKS B HKS
321,545 383,515
5,000 80,100
1,860 4,000

328,405 467,615

Accounts receivables that were past due but
not impaired relate to a number of independent
customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, the directors
of the Group are of the opinion that no provision
for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over these balances.

i)
=t
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16. Bk - 34 R IR 1e.
5K
ARAREE 2 RS REMBEKIRRZ
IR R AP ERE -

HZE2008F3A310 KRR REE 2
B N E Ath E UIR FR AT FE 8 B SR A ©
(20074 : #7)

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES

The carrying amounts of the Company’s and the
Group's deposits and other receivables approximate
to their fair values.

As at 31March 2008, the Company’s and the
Group's deposits and other receivables were neither
past due nor impaired (2007: Nil).

17. B4 KkZM3i4MHH CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

58 Group
2008
EH HKS
S RARITHER
Cash and bank balance 3,437,659
EHER
Time deposits _ 11,000,000

14,437,659

FR|ITZHAERBERITEAERER
BUSBANE - REARAMEEHNRS
TRz EHEHRERE-AE
B A S - LAD BISRER T [ 2 %2 #i
HANE - BehFRREEE ZIREE
BEENFERE

18. ME AT MR K BE st £ 1% 18.

FEMIREAEFE - BERCOBRHR

A2 B B S 2 06 0B B R £ R
IEEERE AT EAE -

/A5) Company
2007 2008 2007
B HKS % HKS B HKS
18,202,702 3,437,653 18,202,702
- 11,000,000

18,202,702 14,437,653 18,202,702

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates
based on daily bank deposit rates. Short term
time deposits are made for varying periods of
between one day and two months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Company and
the Group, and earn interest at the respective short
term time deposit rates. The carrying amounts of the
cash and cash equivalents approximate to their fair
values.

CREDITORS AND ACCURED
LIABILTIES

Creditors are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled on 60-day terms.

The carrying amounts of the Company’s and
the Group's creditors and accrued liabilities
approximate to their fair values.

Bl 15 ¥R 7% B 5E
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19. BERAMELHE 19.

AR REENEERETAHERF
BYE SFEVMEXHEMR=F -

MR2008F3A31H » "AArMEERE
TOEHEAEMEMBARAR SN2 &
EHEES@EMOT :

—ER

Within one year

E_EERF(BEEERS)

In the second to fifth years, inclusive

20. DABUNS 2y Z S T H 20.

FRRMITANGEER ZIREENT

B #EE Financial assets

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Company and the Group leases its office
property under operating lease arrangements.
Lease for the property is negotiated for a term of
three years.

At 31 March 2008, the Company and the Group had
total future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

£ E K25 Group and Company

2008 HK$ &# 2007 HK$ &%
1,800,000 1,800,000
1,800,000 3,600,000

3,600,000 5,400,000

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

financial instruments as at the balance sheet date
are as follow:

%8 Group AB] Company
B R FEIRSR ERREWIRER
Loans and receivables Loans and receivables
2008 2007 2008 2007
PEEE HKS BEE HKS BEE HKS B HKS
E=d
MR 328,405 467,615 328,405 467,615
Accounts receivable
MBEEBBENTIE « ke REMEKIRE
Financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and 2,201,433 468,688 2,201,433 468,688
other receivables
iﬁﬁ&%ﬁl}ﬁﬁlﬁg 14,437,659 18,202,702 14,437,653 18,202,702
Cash and cash equivalents
16,967,497 19,139,005 16,967,491 19,139,005
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Bt #% £ 1& Financial liabilities

£ Group /28] Company
LESER A ARZ ZRMEA R LUSERAARZ =M A &
Financial liabilities at amortised cost Financial liabilities at amortised cost
2008 2007 2008 2007
B HKS B HKS B HKS B HKS
MR ERREFUERE A E 222,089 511,920 222,089 511,920

Financial liabilities included in creditors and accrued liabilities

21. WBsE S P 2 H OB R BOR 21. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMNETS
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are credit risk and liquidity risk. Council
Members reviews and agrees policies for managing
the risk as below.

AEBPBTAMPRZEBZRBRRE
ERBEkRBESRER - BEERTK
REEETHERRCHE  HEWT -

EaRE Credit risk
REBSpEE TEERIKE 1% The credit risk of the Group's financial assets,
S RHMEWE ZZSRE - JiRE % which comprise accounts receivable and deposits
AR E B MaARKRERZ and other receivables, arises from default of the
ETAREE BEerFrfiksegE counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to
SREEM T @ULIREE - AR E A A] the carrying amount of this instrument. The Group
BRI EEEL R A REEBRER - reviews the recoverable amounts of each financial
AREBWECERRBHEDHIBER o assets regularly to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are recognised for the irrecoverable
balances. The Group has no significant
concentration of credit risks.

EHEERAB Liquidity risk

AEEHNBREEMERRFRBEHD
MBELHFR  REFZHANRSFHE
ENEMEERRBESHTL -

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial
liabilities as at the balance sheet date, based on the
contracted undiscounted payments, was as follows:

AEENGEE R ERRAIMLZE
MEEZIHMBERAT

DH3EB
Less than 3 months

2008 2007
B% HKS B HKS

FEATIRIE 222,089 511,920

Creditors

Rl %5 ¥t 7% B i
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21. B MR AT AL 2 H B R BOR(E) 21

BhEn

AEEEAER 2T EARAREAE
BLSBEgen A BELEURERR
ZEARLE  AIHHER -

7SR R R AR AR T B B H B AR IR
ARSI S8 - REBIEA ZAERSH
KB ARR - BLE2008F3A31HK
20074F3A31HILSFE - FHABE K

AEBABRB L R (BUREE E BRI
MBAB)ERER - AREZBRA
HERREBLLERR -

22. WMHHRZ B 22.

EEgN200848 H20 H L /AR %R
R RHET)E -

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENTS
OBJECTIVIES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group's capital
management is to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business.

The Group manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in
economic conditions. The Group is not subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes during the year ended 31March 2008 and
2007.

The Group monitors capital using a current ratio,
which is current assets divided by current liabilities.
The Group's policy is to keep the current ratio above 1.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and

authorised for issue by the Council Members on 20
August 2008.
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HONGKONG CHINESE ORCHESTRA

To mark the corporatization of Hong Kong Chinese
Orchestra, a new symbol has been created to help usher
in a new era, a new image and a new outlook for the
Orchestra.

The symbol is a multi-facetted sign. Together with the
Orchestra name in Chinese and English characters of
elegant fonts, the symbol forms the signature of the
Orchestra. This is a work of art by Hong Kong renowned
designer Mr Hon Bing Wah.

The symbol itself is developed from a musical note.

The top part of the musical note consists of two distinct

strokes and dots, which can transpire into various images

to convey different meanings, including:

® a soaring dancing dragon with two bright eyes,
symbolic of the land of origin of Chinese music, also
denoting an abundance of vigour.

® a person in vivacious motion with both arms
outstretched, symbolic of an orchestra conductor, or
musicians in concert, or an appreciative audience, all
denoting the interaction of the Orchestra at work.

e flower in full bloom, denoting the Orchestra's progress
towards prosperity.

Similarly, the bottom part of the musical note carries

multiple notations, such as:

e Drawn in strokes of Chinese calligraphy, it has an
English character "C" embedded in an English character
"Q", as a synonym for "Chinese Orchestra".

e The round shape implies the pinnacle reached by
Chinese music - harmony.

The entire symbol also looks like an abstract rendition of a
traditional Chinese musical instrument.

The symbol is dressed in two warm colours. Red is the
predominant colour on the national flag of China and the
SAR flag of Hong Kong. Purple conveys a touch of class
as well as the colour of Hong Kong's flower, the Bauhinia
Blakeanna.

While saluting oriental culture in tint and tone, the symbol
is built on a simple and clear modern-day structure,
applying the musical note as an international language.
Through the fusion of charms of East and West, tradition
and contemporary, Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra works
towards reaching out to the world with its music.
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